
CITY OF FRANKLIN 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING* 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 18, 2022, 7:00 P.M. 

               
The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Plan Commission 

meeting so that the public will be able to watch and listen to the meeting.  
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov.   

 
 

A.   Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

B.  Approval of Minutes 
 

 1. Approval of regular meeting of August 4, 2022. 
 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters (action may be taken on all matters following  
                                                                      the respective Public Hearing thereon) 

 
 1. JAX INC. LUBRICANTS FOR MACHINERY AND PROCESSES 

PACKAGING BUSINESS.  Special Use application by JAX Inc., to operate an 
industrial, synthetic and food-grade lubricants for machinery and processes 
packaging business (including a fenced area for 6 LP (liquid propane) tank pads 
and 2 concrete pads for filling units, east of the main building) (canning and 
packing businesses require a Special Use permit in Planned Development District 
No. 7 (Franklin Industrial Park), property located at 9845 South 57th Street, 
zoned Planned Development District No. 7 (Franklin Industrial Park); Tax Key 
No. 899-0002-000.  A PUBLIC HEARING IS SCHEDULED FOR THIS 
MEETING UPON THIS MATTER.    

D. Business Matters (no Public Hearing is required upon the following matters; action may be   
                                           taken on all matters) 
 

1. JOINT VENTURE L.L.C. RESIDENTIAL MULTI-FAMILY COMPLEX 
DETACHED GARAGE CONSTRUCTION.  Site Plan Amendment application 
by Joint Venture L.L.C., to allow for construction of a 24 foot by 30 foot detached 
garage (for storage of landscaping and other exterior maintenance equipment) 
adjacent to the parking area facing South 35th Street, property zoned R-8 
Multiple-Family Residence District, C-1 Conservancy District, FC Floodplain 
Conservancy District and FW Floodway District, generally located at 6350 South 
35th Street; Tax Key No. 714-9988-002. 

 
2.  WOODFIELD TRAIL, A CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT.  Declaration 

of Condominium Plat application by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear  

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov


Franklin Plan Commission Agenda 
8/18/22 
Page 2 

 
Development, LLC (Boomtown, LLC, property owner), for the development of a 
condominium complex (Woodfield Trail, a Condominium), consisting of 26 
dwelling units arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex structures, property located at 
12000 West Loomis Road (15.6 acres), such property being zoned R-8 Multiple-
Family Residence District; Tax Key No. 891-9011-000 [a Special Use and Site 
Plan have already been approved for this project in June 2022, pending conditions 
of approval including a landscape bufferyard easement along Loomis Road and 
conservation easement for protected natural resources]. 

 
E. Adjournment 

 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 
 
**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have 
decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the 
Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 
 
REMINDERS: 
Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: September 8, 2022  



Page 1                Plan Commission – Minutes 

                             August 4, 2022  

 City of Franklin unapproved  

 Plan Commission Meeting                            

August 4, 2022 

Minutes 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor Steve Olson called the August 4, 2022, regular Plan 

Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, 

Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor Steve Olson, Alderwoman Shari 

Hanneman, Commissioners Patrick Leon, Kevin Haley, 

Adam Burckhardt and Patricia Hogan, and City Engineer 

Glen Morrow. Excused were Patricia Hogan and 

Alderwoman Shari Hanneman. Also present were Principal 

Planner Régulo Martínez-Montilva and Associate Planner 

Marion Ecks. 

 

B. Approval of Minutes 

 

 

1. Regular Meeting of July 7, 2022.  

 

 

 

C.   Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.    GAZEBO PARK APARTMENT 

COMPLEX ACCESSORY 

BUILDING EXPANSION. Special Use 

Amendment application by GPark LLC, 

for expansion of two detached garages 

within the Gazebo Park apartment 

complex, the 4-car garage to be 

expanded by 400 square feet to a 6-car 

garage, and another 4-car garage by 600 

square feet, to a 7-car garage (the overall 

parking within this apartment complex 

would increase from 48 to 50 parking 

spaces), property located at 

approximately 6300-6346 South 35th 

Street, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family 

Residence District; Tax Key No. 714-

9990-004.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Haley moved and Commissioner Burckhardt 

seconded a  motion to approve the July 7, 2022, regular 

meeting minutes. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion 

carried (6-0-0). 

 

 

The Official Notice of Public hearing for a Special Use 

Amendment was read in to the record by Associate Planner 

Marion Ecks and the Public Hearing was opened at 7:03 p.m. 

and closed at 7:03 p.m. 

 

Principal Planner Régulo Martínez-Montilva presented the 

request by GPark LLC, for expansion of two detached 

garages within the Gazebo Park apartment complex, the 4-

car garage to be expanded by 400 square feet to a 6-car 

garage, and another 4-car garage by 600 square feet, to a 7-

car garage (the overall parking within this apartment 

complex would increase from 48 to 50 parking spaces), 

property located at approximately 6300-6346 South 35th 

Street, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District; Tax 

Key No. 714-9990-004.   

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Hogan  

seconded a motion to recommend approval of a Resolution 

to amend Resolution Nos. 79-1562, 83-2091, 85-2581, 2009-

6579, 2012-6812, 2014-7007 and 2017-7280 imposing 

conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use 

for the Gazebo Park apartment complex property located at 

approximately 6300-6346 South 35th Street to allow for 

expansion of two detached garages within the apartment 

complex. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (6-

0-0). 

 



Page 2                Plan Commission – Minutes 

                             August 4, 2022  

2.     RAJEEV K. NAGUBANDI AND 

KARTAYANI RAVVA DECK 

INSTALLATION [recommendation to 

Board of Zoning and Building 

Appeals]. Application by Rajeev K. 

Nagubandi and Kartayani Ravva for an 

Area Exception from Table 15-3.0203 of 

the Unified Development Ordinance to 

allow for the installation of a deck onto 

an existing single-family residence 

(15.94% lot coverage (2,224 square 

feet)), exceeding the 15% (2,092 square 

feet) maximum lot coverage standard in 

an R-3 Suburban/Estate Single Family 

Residence District, by approximately 

.94%, for property located at 8774 South 

Buckhorn Grove Way, property zoned 

R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family 

Residence District; Tax Key No. 853-

0132-000.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

3.     SANJAY PATEL SINGLE-

FAMILY RESIDENCE 

CONSTRUCTION [recommendation 

to Board of Zoning and Building 

Appeals]. Application by Sanjay Patel 

for an Area Exception from Table 15-

3.0204 of the Unified Development 

Ordinance to allow for construction of a 

new single-family home in Oakes Estates 

subdivision, with maximum lot coverage 

of 16.84% (7,070 square feet), exceeding 

the R-3E Suburban/Estate Single-Family 

Residence District maximum lot 

coverage standard of 15% (6,297 square 

feet) by approximately 1.84% (residence 

structure will have a footprint of 4,543 

square feet, plus an attached garage 

(1,118 square feet), a courtyard (569 

square feet) and a deck with stairs (840 

square feet), property located at 7406 

South Cambridge Drive, zoned R-3E 

The Official Notice of Public hearing for an Area Exception 

was read in to the record by Associate Planner Marion Ecks 

and the Public Hearing was opened at 7:07 p.m. and closed 

at 7:07 p.m. 

 

Principal Planner Régulo Martínez-Montilva presented the 

request by Rajeev K. Nagubandi and Kartayani Ravva for 

an Area Exception from Table 15-3.0203 of the Unified 

Development Ordinance to allow for the installation of a 

deck onto an existing single-family residence (15.94% lot 

coverage (2,224 square feet)), exceeding the 15% (2,092 

square feet) maximum lot coverage standard in an R-3 

Suburban/Estate Single Family Residence District, by 

approximately .94%, for property located at 8774 South 

Buckhorn Grove Way, property zoned R-3 Suburban/Estate 

Single-Family Residence District; Tax Key No. 853-0132-

000.  

 

Alderwoman Hanneman moved and Commissioner Haley  

seconded a motion to recommend approval of an 

application for an Area Exception to allow for a maximum 

lot coverage of 15.94% (2,224 square feet) [application 

requests an Area Exception from table 15-3.0203 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance to exceed the R-3  

Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District 

maximum lot coverage standard of 15% (2,092 square feet) 

by approximately .94%, to allow for the installation of a 

deck onto an existing single-family residence, property 

located at 8774 South Buckhorn Grove Way. On voice 

vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (6-0-0). 

 

 

The Official Notice of Public hearing for an Area Exception 

was read in to the record by Associate Planner Marion Ecks 

and the Public Hearing was opened at 7:14 p.m. and closed 

at 7:14 p.m.. 

 

Principal Planner Régulo Martínez-Montilva presented the 

request by Sanjay Patel for an Area Exception from Table 

15-3.0204 of the Unified Development Ordinance to allow 

for construction of a new single-family home in Oakes 

Estates subdivision, with maximum lot coverage of 16.84% 

(7,070 square feet), exceeding the R-3E Suburban/Estate 

Single-Family Residence District maximum lot coverage 

standard of 15% (6,297 square feet) by approximately 

1.84% (residence structure will have a footprint of 4,543 

square feet, plus an attached garage (1,118 square feet), a 

courtyard (569 square feet) and a deck with stairs (840 

square feet), property located at 7406 South Cambridge 

Drive, zoned R-3E Suburban/Estate Single-Family 

Residence District; Tax Key No. 754-0077-000.  

 

 



Page 3                Plan Commission – Minutes 

                             August 4, 2022  

Suburban/Estate Single-Family 

Residence District; Tax Key No. 754-

0077-000.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. Business Matters 

 

1.       PAYNE AND DOLAN, INC. 

QUARRY BIANNUAL REPORT TO 

THE PLAN COMMISSION  

 

 

 

 

 

2.       JOSE D. SANDOVAL LAND 

COMBINATION. Land Combination 

application by Jose D. Sandoval to 

combine Parcel 1 and Outlot 1 of 

Certified Survey Map No. 6022 (Parcel 

1, 1.19 acres, Outlot 1, 3.53 acres; 

resulting area approximately 4.71 acres), 

property zoned R-3 Suburban/Estate 

Single-Family Residence District and 

FW Floodway District; Tax Key No. 

886-9989-003.  

     

 

 

 

Adjournment 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Leon  

seconded a motion to recommend approval of an 

application for an Area Exception to allow for a maximum 

lot coverage of 16.84% (7,070 square feet) [application 

requests an Area Exception from table 15-3.0204 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance to exceed the R-3E 

Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District 

maximum lot coverage standard of 15% (6,297 square feet) 

by approximately 1.84%, to allow for construction of a new 

single-family home in Oakes Estates subdivision, property 

located at 7406 South Cambridge Drive. On voice vote, all 

voted ‘aye’; motion carried (6-0-0). 

 

 

Principal Planner Régulo Martínez-Montilva presented the 

request by Payne and Dolan, Inc. quarry biannual report to 

the Plan Commission.  

 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Haley  

seconded a motion to receive and place on file. On voice  

vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (6-0-0). 

 

Associate Planner Marion Ecks presented the request by 

Jose D. Sandoval to combine Parcel 1 and Outlot 1 of 

Certified Survey Map No. 6022 (Parcel 1, 1.19 acres, 

Outlot 1, 3.53 acres; resulting area approximately 4.71 

acres), property zoned R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family 

Residence District and FW Floodway District; Tax Key No. 

886-9989-003.  
 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley  

seconded a motion to recommend approval of a Resolution 

conditionally approving a Land Combination for parcel 1 

(tax key no. 886-9989-003) and Outlot 1 of Certified 

Survey Map No. 6022 (8857 West St. Martins Road). On 

voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (6-0-0). 
 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Alderwoman Hanneman 

seconded to adjourn the Plan Commission meeting of August 4, 

2022 at 7:28 p.m.. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried 

(6-0-0).  

  

 



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of August 18, 2022 
 

SPECIAL USE 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use application 
submitted by Jax, Inc. for canning and packing use at 9845 S. 57th Street, subject to the conditions set 
forth in the attached resolution. 
 

Project name: Jax Inc. Special Use 
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 9845 S. 57th Street / 899 0002 000 
Applicant: Jax, Inc.  
Property owner: Allman Equities-Franklin, LLC 
Agent: Kyle Peter. Jax, Inc. 
Zoning District: Planned Development District (PDD) No. 7 
 (Franklin Industrial Park) 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Use of Surrounding Properties: North: Industrial zoned M-1 
 East and South: PDD No. 7  
 West: Vacant zoned Park District (P-1) 

Proposal: Canning and packing business moving into an existing 
building. Exterior improvements include a fenced area for LP 
tanks and concrete pads for filling units. 

Staff Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, Principal Planner 

 
INTRODUCTION 
Jax Inc. applied for a zoning compliance permit to allow for canning and packing of lubricant products. 
City Development staff denied this request because canning and packing businesses require a special 
use permit in the Franklin Industrial Park per Ordinance 85-864, Section 12.10(6). Additionally, the 
applicant submitted a Minor Site Plan amendment application to allow for a fenced area for 6 LP tank 
pads and 2 concrete pads for filing units to be located east of the main building. This Minor Site Plan 
amendment application is currently on hold waiting for the approval of the Special Use permit. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS: 

After providing additional information requested in Memorandum dated July 14, this request has been 
substantially complete for a special use permit, allowing for Section § 15-3.0701 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) sets out the General Standards for Special Uses. The applicant has 
submitted responses to each of those standards, asserting that there will be no undue adverse impact or 
interference with surrounding development as a result of this special use, and that the building is already 
served by public utilities. The applicant asserts that there will be no undue traffic congestion, no destruction 
of significant features, and that the business will comply with all standards. 
 

Item C.1. 



 
 

2 

The intent of the Planned Development District No. 7 is “to assist in enhancing the development of the City 
of Franklin Industrial Park for a general mix of light industry, office uses, industrial service uses, wholesale 
and warehousing uses, and associate public and community service uses”. The proposed canning and 
packing use appears to be consistent with the district intent.  
 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section § 15-3.0703 Detailed Standards for Special Uses in 
Nonresidential Districts does not apply to this project, as the proposed special use is not one of the 
specified special uses in this section. 
 
With regards to UDO Section 15-3.1100 Hazard Abatement Performance Standards, the applicant 
indicated that the pump will generate minimal noise, no odors will be emitted, as well as no vibration, 
smoke, glare, or heat emitted will be emitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use application submitted by Jax, Inc. for 
canning and packing use at 9845 S. 57th Street, subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution. 
 
The proposed exterior improvements require approval of a Minor Site Plan which has already been submitted 
by the applicant. 
 
It is worth noting the staff recommendations below: 
 

• The applicant shall submit a Landscape Plan as part of the Minor Site Plan amendment 
indicated above, depicting landscape screening in the area between the proposed exterior 
improvements and S. 57th Street, at least 3 trees and 6 shrubs shall be required for screening 
purposes. (Condition of approval #7). 

o Staff comment: per Planned Development District No. 7, Ordinance No. 85-864, 
Section (12), at least 1 tree per 50 feet are recommended for screening purposes. The 
distance between the parking lot and the south property line is 150 feet, therefore at 
least 3 trees are recommended. 
 

• Pursuant to Planned Development District No. 7, Ordinance No. 85-864, Section 14, the 
applicant shall revise the site plan to depict a solid wall or fence around the LP tanks for 
screening purposes. A chain-link fence with privacy slats is acceptable for this purpose. 
(Condition of approval #8). 

 
 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
        [Draft 8-11-22]  

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS  
 FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO OPERATE AN  

INDUSTRIAL, SYNTHETIC AND FOOD-GRADE LUBRICANTS  
FOR MACHINERY AND PROCESSES PACKAGING BUSINESS 

(BY JAX INC., APPLICANT, ALLMAN  
EQUITIES-FRANKLIN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              
 

WHEREAS, JAX Inc. having petitioned the City of Franklin for the approval of a 
Special Use within Planned Development District No. 7 (Franklin Industrial Park), to operate 
an industrial, synthetic and food-grade lubricants for machinery and processes packaging 
business (including a fenced area for 6 LP (liquid propane) tank pads and 2 concrete pads for 
filling units, east of the main building) (canning and packing businesses require a Special 
Use permit in Planned Development District No. 7 (Franklin Industrial Park), upon property 
located at 9845 South 57th Street.  The property which is the subject of the application bears 
Tax Key No. 899-0002-000 and is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot Two (2) in Block One (1) in Franklin Industrial Park, being a re-division 
of Certified Survey Map No. 3226 and a subdivision of land in part of the 
Southwest One-quarter (1/4) of the Northwest One-quarter (1/4), the 
Northwest One-quarter (1/4) and part of the Northeast One-quarter (1/4) of the 
Southwest One-quarter (1/4) of Section Twenty-six (26), in Township Five (5) 
North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, in the City of Franklin, County of 
Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin; and 

  
WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the 

City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan 
Commission on the 18th day of August, 2022, and the Plan Commission thereafter having 
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain 
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon 
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in 
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive 
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it 
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served 
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic 
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to 
nature, history or the like; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission 
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions, 



JAX INC. – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 2 

 
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of JAX Inc., for the approval of a Special 
Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be and the 
same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions: 
 

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by JAX 
Inc., successors and assigns, for a lubricants for machinery and processes 
packaging business use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with, 
and operated and maintained by JAX Inc., pursuant to those plans City file-
stamped August 4, 2022 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

2. JAX Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of 
all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of 
Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the JAX Inc.  
lubricants for machinery and processes packaging business use, within 30 days of 
invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of 
the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended 
from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the JAX Inc. lubricants for 
machinery and processes packaging business use for the property located at 9845 
South 57th Street in Planned Development District No. 7 (Franklin Industrial 
Park):  (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, 
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental 
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project 
to be developed and as presented for this approval. 

4. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits through the Inspection Services 
Department. 

5. The applicant shall obtain a separate approval for stormwater management, 
utilities, grading and erosion control through the Engineering Department, if 
applicable. 

6. The applicant shall obtain approval of a Minor Site Plan amendment for the 
proposed exterior improvements, including but not limited to the fenced area for 
LP tanks and concrete pads for filling units. 

7. The applicant shall submit a Landscape Plan as part of the Minor Site Plan 
amendment indicated above, depicting landscape screening in the area between  



JAX INC. – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 3 
 

the proposed exterior improvements and S. 57th Street, at least 3 trees and 6 
shrubs shall be required for screening purposes.  

8. Pursuant to Planned Development District No. 7, Ordinance No. 85-864, Section 
14, the applicant shall revise the site plan to depict a solid wall or fence around the 
LP tanks for screening purposes. A chain-link fence with privacy slats is 
acceptable for this purpose. 

9. This Special Use permit is not approving the “potential road access” depicted on 
the plan city file-stamped August 4, 2022. Pursuant to the Unified Development 
Ordinance Section 15-5.0202, all drives shall be improved with pavement of 
either asphalt or concrete and stormwater drainage facilities, as well as curb and 
gutter shall be installed. The applicant shall submit a Site Plan amendment to 
request approval of this future drive, pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance 
Section 15-7.0103. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event JAX Inc., successors or assigns, or 
any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of the conditions and 
restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and 
failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and hearing, 
may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or 
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than 
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as  
may be specified therein from time to time.  Each day that such violation continues shall be a 
separate violation.  Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of 
that or any other violation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such 
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall 
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, 
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit 
for such use. 
 

 



JAX INC. – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 4 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain 
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

9845 S. 57th Street
TKN: 899 0002 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

PDD 

M-1 

P-1 

PDD 

R-2 

I-1 

FC  

C-1 
FC  

60
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

FRANKLIN                       DR   

AIRWAYS                        AVE  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 360 720180 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

9845 S. 57th Street
TKN: 899 0002 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

60
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

FRANKLIN                       DR   

AIRWAYS                        AVE  

57
TH

ST

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 360 720180 Feet

Property

 









































 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of August 18, 2022 
 

SITE PLAN 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development staff recommends approval of the Site Plan Amendment 
subject to the conditions of approval in attached draft Resolution. 

Project Name:  Joint Venture LLC Site Plan Amendment 

Project Address: 6350 S 35th Street 

Applicant: Joint Venture LLC 

Property Owner: Joint Venture LLC 

Current Zoning: R-8 – Multiple-Family Residence District, C-1 – Conservancy 
District, FC – Floodplain Conservancy District, FW – Floodway 
District 

2025 Comprehensive Plan Residential – Multi-Family 

Use of Surrounding Properties: Multi-Family Residential to the north, northwest, and south; PDD 
14 (Home Depot) to the east; and a Grobschmidt Park to the west  

Applicant Action Requested: Approval of the Site Plan Amendment  

Planner: Marion Ecks, AICP, Associate Planner 

 
INTRODUCTION 
This Site Plan Amendment has been requested to allow for construction of a shed to store outdoor 
maintenance equipment for the multifamily residential complex at this location.  The proposed shed 
will be located adjacent to an existing parking lot; no vehicles will be stored inside the shed. At the 
time of the original request, the applicant wished to install a 24’X30’ (720 square feet). An alternate 
design of a 16’X40’ (640 square feet) has subsequently been proposed.  
 
The original site plan for this development was adopted as part of a Special Use approval in 1985 via 
Resolution No. 85-2542. 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
There are a few existing constraints to the property that impact the design and development of this 
project.  
 
1. Setbacks. Accessory structures may not be located in a front yard, meaning that the structure may 

not be closer to the property line than a residential building (§15-3.0801B).  In addition, the 
required front yard setback of 30’ is increased by one additional foot for each two feet over 35 feet 
of building height for principal structures (Table 15-3.0209A(c)).  The proposed shed designs 
meets these requirements.  
 

2. Easements.  The applicant must verify that the structure will not be located within any easement 
(§15-3.0801D, §15-7.0103X). The site plan is not showing the offset distance of the proposed 

Item D.1. 



 
 

2 

garage from the existing sanitary main. They will need to show the garage is 10-ft minimum offset 
from the sanitary main or outside the easement.  

Inspection on site is required 
as a condition of approval in 
order to verify the 10-ft 
minimum offset from the 
sanitary main. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS 
This property is zoned §15-3.0209: R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District, with areas of C-1 – 
Conservancy District, FC – Floodplain Conservancy District, and FW – Floodway District. The 
proposed addition is not in the areas of conservation or flood zoning. In addition to the requirements of 
the zoning, Site Plan applications are subject to the standards of §15-7.0100: Site Plan review.  
Accessory Structures such as sheds and garages are subject to the standards of § 15-3.0801: General 
Standards for Accessory Uses and Structures. The Plan meets the requirements of the UDO with 
regards to setbacks and building dimensions.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends approval of this Site Plan subject to the conditions in the draft 
resolution. 

 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
             PLAN COMMISSION              [Draft 8-9-22] 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE SITE PLAN FOR PROPERTY  

GENERALLY LOCATED AT 6350 SOUTH 35TH STREET TO  
ALLOW FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A DETACHED GARAGE  

(TAX KEY NO. 714-9988-002)  
 (JOINT VENTURE L.L.C., APPLICANT) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, Joint Venture, L.L.C. having applied for an amendment to the Site Plan 
for the property generally located at 6350 South 35th Street, such Site Plan having been 
previously approved by Resolution No. 85-2542; and  
 
 WHEREAS, such proposed amendment proposes construction of a 24 foot by 30 foot 
detached garage for a residential multi-family complex (for storage of landscaping and other 
exterior maintenance equipment) adjacent to the parking area facing South 35th Street, and 
the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found same to be in 
compliance with and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes of a Site Plan 
review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for Joint Venture, L.L.C., dated July 21, 2022, as 
submitted by Joint Venture, L.L.C., as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Joint Venture, L.L.C., successors and assigns and any developer of the Joint Venture, 
L.L.C. detached garage construction within the residential multi-family complex 
project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, 
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults 
to the City of Franklin, for the Joint Venture, L.L.C. detached garage construction 
within the residential multi-family complex project, within 30 days of invoice for 
same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the 
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Joint Venture, L.L.C. and the 
detached garage construction within the residential multi-family complex project for 
the property generally located at 6350 South 35th Street:  (i) being in compliance with 
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and 
(ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, 
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this 
approval. 



JOINT VENTURE, L.L.C. - SITE PLAN AMENDMENT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 2 

3. The Joint Venture, L.L.C. detached garage construction within the residential multi-
family complex project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the plans 
City file-stamped July 21, 2022.  

4. The applicant must verify that the structure will not be located within any easement 
(§15-3.0801D, §15-7.0103X). Inspection on site is required prior to the issuance of 
building permits in order to verify the 10-ft minimum offset from the sanitary main. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the Joint Venture, L.L.C. detached garage construction within the residential 
multi-family complex as depicted upon the plans City file-stamped July 21, 2022, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein, shall be developed and constructed within one year from the 
date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted 
hereunder shall be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin; and the 
Site Plan for the property generally located at 6350 South 35th Street, as previously 
approved, is amended accordingly. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Stephen R. Olson, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

Address: 6350 S. 35th Street 
TKN: 714 9988 002

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-8

FW 

R-8

FC 

PDD 

C-1

P-1

PDD 

P-1

C-1

FFO 

R-8

PDD 

C-1

C-1

FC 

FC 

FC 

C-1

B-2

35
TH

 
 ST

 

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 310 620155 Feet

Property



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

Address: 6350 S. 35th Street 
TKN: 714 9988 002

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

S  
 35

TH
   S

T
35

TH
 

 ST
 

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 310 620155 Feet

Property



www.trikepm.com 

Mailing Address:  Phone: 414-332-5500 x104 
P.O. BOX 11159  Fax: 414-332-5511 

     Milwaukee, WI  53211 Email:  Zachary@trikepm.com 

7/21/2022 

Garage/Shed Construction Proposal 

Name of the construction project: Parkwood Village Townhomes Storage Garage/Shed 

The project will be constructed at: 6350 S 35th St. 
Franklin, WI 53132 

Tax Key: 714 9988 002 

Project Plan: A storage garage/shed will be built on the property in the North West corner of the 
property adjacent to 6350 S. 35th St and across from 6354 S. 35th st. All setbacks and easments will 
be maintained and there will be no changes to parking or landscaping. 

Designs: The structure proposed will be either a storage garage with a footprint of 30’ x 24’ or a 
storage shed with a footprint of 16’ x 40’. The structure will be 1 story and less than 15’ high. It will 
be built with the same siding and shingles of the current buildings to match the design of the 
property. 

Construction Start Date: We hope to have construction started this year upon approval of the site 
plan ammenment and issuing of permits. 

Attached are the Following: 
• Site Plan for Garage
• Site Plan for Shed
• Calculations for Site Intensity & Capacity Calculations
• Answers to the Staff Comments for the Site Plan Amendment

o Answers are in BLUE

For further details contact the undersigned. 

Zachary Galicki, Property Manager 
Trike Property Management 
P.O. Box 11159 
Milwaukee, WI  53211 
Phone:  414-332-5500 
Fax:  414-332-5511 
Email:  Zachary@trikepm.com 



Michael Askotzky
6350 S. 35th Street
Franklin WI 53132

Q-1680650

Wall D

Wall A Wall C

Wall B

Base Details
Building Size & Style

Premier Pro Tall Ranch - 16' wide by 
40' long

Door
4' x 6'7" Single Shed Door, Left Hinge 
Placement

Paint Selection
Base: Almond Brittle, Trim: Delicate 
White

Roof Selection
Hickory Dimensional Premium 
Shingle

Drip Edge
White

Is a permit required for this job?
Yes

Who is pulling the permit?
Tuff Shed

Options Details
Special Instructions

single Door to face south
Doors

Roll-Up Canister Door (8' x 7'), , Heavy 
Duty Ramp Pair
4' x 6'7" Single Shed Door, Left Hinge 
Placement

Transoms
15 Ea Transom Window (16"x8")

Walls
112 Lin Ft Wall Height - 1' increase from 
standard

Floor and Foundation
640 Sq Ft PT Floor Frame in lieu of Steel
640 Sq Ft 12" OC Joist Spacing

Vents
2 Ea 16"x8" Wall Vent - White

Jobsite/Installer Details
Do you plan to insulate this building after Tuff Shed 

installs it?
No

Is there a power outlet within 100 feet of installation 
location?
No

The building location must be level to properly install the 
building. How level is the install location?
Within 4" of level

Will there be 18" of unobstructed workspace around the 
perimeter of all four walls?
Yes

Can the installers park their pickup truck & trailer within 
approximately 200' of your installation site?
Yes

Substrate Shed will be installed on?
blacktop

Signature: _\s1\___________________ Date: ____\d1\______





Distance of 40’ to property edge

16ft x 
40 Ft



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of August 18, 2022 
 

CONDOMINIUM PLAT 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development staff recommends approval of the Woodfield Trail 
Condominium Plat, subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution. 
 

Property Owner: Woodfield Trail, Condominium Plat 
Applicant: S.R. Mills. Boomtown, LLC  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 12000 W Loomis Rd. 
Aldermanic District: District 6 
Agent: Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC 
Zoning District:  R-8 – Multiple-Family Residence District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: North: Planned Development District No. 40 (Cape 

Crossing), single-family residential. 
 South: Vacant properties zoned residential, R-2 and R-8.  
 East: Vacant and single-family residential zoned R-8 
 West: We-energies right-of-way and vacant land owned by 

the State of Wisconsin. 

Proposal: Two-family residential condominium with 26 dwelling units 
served by a cul-de-sac street. 

Staff Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, Principal Planner 

 
Condominium Plat application submitted on July 8, 2020, for the Woodfield Trail Condominium 
development, which consists of 13 duplex ranch style buildings for a total of 26 dwelling units. The 
Woodfield Court cul-de-sac street is depicted for reference only and it should be dedicated by a 
separate instrument because Condominium Plats cannot create public streets or dedicate any area to the 
public in accordance with the current Wisconsin Platting Manual.  
 
Special Use and Site Plan have already been approved for this project in June 2022, pending conditions 
of approval include a landscape bufferyard easement along Loomis Road and conservation easement 
for protected natural resources. The landscape bufferyard easements was approved by the Common 
Council on July 19, recording is pending; and the conservation easement was submitted for review to 
the City Development Department. 
 
Other outstanding conditions approval that should be addressed during the developer’s agreement are 
listed below: 

• Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) 
o Condition #5, that the applicant shall place boulders or other markers to demarcate the 

wetland setback on the property. 
o #8, that the applicant incur only temporary impacts to wetland setback and buffer, which 

shall be restored to the standards of UDO §15-4.0102I for wetland setback and UDO §15-
4.0103B5 for wetland buffer.  

Item D.2. 



 
 

2 

o #9, that the applicant provide for repair of the pond drainage tile/pipe between the pond 
edge and the outlet at Ryan Road, subject to a revised conservation easement; and for the 
removal of buckthorn with a minimum expenditure of $10,000. 

• Special Use resolution 
o Condition #6, The sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side of Ryan Road, between 

the future Woodfield Court and the east boundary of this development, should be 
included in the development agreement.  

 
Pursuant to UDO Section 15-7.0603.D, the condominium declaration and bylaws is subject to review 
by the City Attorney. City Attorney comments are included in the staff memorandum dated August 2, 
2022, which the applicant has addressed in the Plan Commission submittal received on August 9, 
2022. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

A motion to recommend approval of the Woodfield Trail Condominium Plat, subject to the conditions 
set forth in the attached resolution. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                 [Draft 8-11-22] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
WOODFIELD TRAIL, A CONDOMINIUM AT 12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD 

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC,  
APPLICANT, BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for 
approval of a condominium plat for Woodfield Trail, a Condominium (total development 
includes 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex structures, such plat being a 
part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 
East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:  Commencing at 
the northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 30; thence South 89°31'45" East 
along the north line of said Northwest 1/4, 1325.63 feet to the North 1/8 Section Corner as 
described by the Original 1857 Section Survey of Township 5 North Range 21 East; thence 
South 00°34'12" East, 24.75 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing South 
00°34'12" East and then along the west line of Certified Survey Map No. 8907, 918.52 feet 
to the north right of way line of West Loomis Road - State Trunk Highway "45" - State 
Trunk Highway "36"; thence South 75°45'51" West along said north right of way line, 
897.94 feet; thence North 01°15'54" West, 454.13 feet to the south line of the Wisconsin 
Electric Power Company right of way, as recorded in the Register of Deeds office for 
Milwaukee County in Volume 1395, Page 367, and a point on a curve; thence northeasterly 
923.45 feet along the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius is 7877.60 feet and whose 
chord bears North 41°51'35" East, 922.92 feet; thence North 89°31'45" West, 255.39 feet to 
the Point of Beginning, more specifically, of the property located at 12000 West Loomis 
Road, bearing Tax Key No. 891-9011-000, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear 
Development, LLC, applicant; said Condominium Plat having been reviewed by the City 
Plan Commission following the reviews and recommendations or reports of the Department 
of City Development and the City Engineering Department, and the Plan Commission having 
recommended approval thereof at its meeting on August 18, 2022, pursuant to certain 
conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan 
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such 
proposed condominium plat is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain 
conditions and is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, and will serve to further orderly growth and development and promote 
the health, safety and welfare of the Community. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Condominium Plat for Woodfield Trail, a 
Condominium, as submitted by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, as 



A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
WOODFIELD TRAIL, A CONDOMINIUM  
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 2 
 
described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by 
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and 
made by the applicant, and that all minor technical deficiencies within the 
Condominium Plat be rectified, all prior to the recording of the Condominium Plat. 
 

2. Boomtown, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount 
of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of 
Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Woodfield Trail, a 
Condominium development, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of 
this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject 
to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and 
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, President of 
Bear Development, LLC, applicant, and the Woodfield Trail, a Condominium 
development for the property located at 12000 West Loomis Road: (i) being in 
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and 
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and 
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented 
for this approval. 

4. The Woodfield Trail, a Condominium development project shall be developed in 
substantial compliance with the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 

5. This resolution is not accepting any dedication of land for right-of-way purposes. A 
separate instrument, such as Certified Survey Map or deed, shall be required for 
dedication of land for right-of-way purposes. 
 

6. The applicant shall revise the Condominium Plat to add the label pertaining to the 
Landscape Bufferyard easement adjacent to Loomis Road, prior to recording with the 
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 

 
7. The applicant shall revise the Declaration of Condominium to update the 

condominium address, prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of 
Deeds. 

 
8. The road dedication and proposed easements (Watermain, Storm Water Management 

Access, Trail, Conservation and Landscape Bufferyard) must be approved and  



A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
WOODFIELD TRAIL, A CONDOMINIUM  
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 3 
 

accepted by the Common Council before recording the condo plat and easements. 
 

9. The Woodfield Trail Condominium shall be developed in substantial compliance with 
previously approved Special Use, Resolution No. 2022-7873, and Site Plan, Plan 
Commission Resolution No. 2022-016. 
 

10. This Condominium Plat shall be recorded with the Milwaukee County Register of 
Deeds by the City Clerk prior to the issuance of building permits. 

 
11. Following the recording of the plat, the applicant shall provide a copy of the 

recording information and final condominium plat to the Engineering Department and 
Department of City Development. 

  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Condominium Plat for Woodfield Trail, a 
Condominium be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and without any 
further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above conditions 
is or are not met and satisfied within 12 months from the date of adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions 
within 12 months of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, 
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and 
procedures for the recording of a condominium plat, the City Clerk is hereby directed to 
obtain the recording of the Condominium Plat for Woodfield Trail, a Condominium with the 
Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. 
 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin 
this_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
        
 
 



A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
WOODFIELD TRAIL, A CONDOMINIUM  
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_____ 
Page 4 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



1  

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: August 2, 2022 

To: Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC. 
From: Department of City Development 
 Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, Principal Planner 

RE:  Applications for Condominium Plat – Woodfield Trail 
 12000 W. Loomis Road 

 
 

Staff comments are as follows for the above-referenced application received on July 8, 2022: 
 
City Development Department comments 

1. Street name. As previously pointed out by the Engineering Department, there is already street 
named “Woodfield Court” in the city of Franklin. Please use a different street name and update the 
condominium plat and declaration accordingly. 
 

2. Landscape bufferyard easement. Please update the landscape bufferyard easement area, attached 
exhibit associated with the easement approved by the Common Council on July 19.  

 
3. Approximate square footage of each unit. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes §703.11(c), please add 

the approximate square footage of each unit to the condominium plat. 

Engineering Department comments 

4. Proposed Woodfield Trial Condominium Plat: 
 

1) Rename the street name. Woodfield court is already in use. 
2) Show on the proposed condominium the 20 ft wide trail easement (Northwest corner), the 20 ft 
wide water main easement (Southeast corner), and the conservancy easement. 
3) Relabel the Storm Water Access Easement to Storm Water Management Access Easement. 

 
Note: The road dedication and the proposed easements (Watermain, Storm Water Management 
Access, Trail, and Conservancy) must be approved and accepted by the Common Council before 
recording the condo plat and easements. 
 

City Attorney comments (regarding condominium declaration and bylaws) 

5. Below is the City standard form provision which goes in subdivisions re: homeowners’ association, 
etc., so the terms re: “Association” etc., would need to be changed to be applicable; developer can 
do the redraft when putting it in the Declaration, and the thought is also that it should/might as 
well go in the Bylaws.  Understand there are common areas, the maintenance enforcement 
provision only exists for that, and the review is only for that.  Thanks. 
 
City proforma terms: 
 



2  

__)  Enforcement of Maintenance Obligations by the City.   In the event that the Association, the 
Management Company, and/or any other person or entity then responsible to do so (collectively, 
the “Association”), fails to maintain the Common Property as required hereunder, the City of 
Franklin may serve written notice upon the Association and/or upon the Owner(s) of the Property 
subject to this Declaration, setting forth the manner in which the Association has failed to maintain 
the Common Property as required, and demanding that such deficiencies be remedied within thirty 
(30) days thereof.  If the deficiencies set forth in the notice shall not be remedied as required, the 
City, in order to preserve taxable values in the area and to prevent the Common Property from 
becoming a public nuisance, may enter upon said Common Property to remedy and maintain same 
using its own employees or contracting with others, and taking such actions as is necessary in its 
sole discretion to correct the failure to maintain.  Said entry and maintenance shall not vest in the 
public any rights to use the Common Property except in the event same is voluntarily dedicated to 
the public and accepted by the City pursuant to law.  If the City shall determine that the 
Association is ready and able to maintain said Common Property as required hereunder, the City 
shall then cease to maintain said Common Property and give notice thereof to the Association 
and/or Property Owner(s).  If the City shall determine that the Association is not ready or willing 
or able to maintain said Common Property as required hereunder, the City may, in its discretion, 
continue to maintain said Common Property.  All costs associated with such maintenance and/or 
corrective action shall be levied as a special charge for current services against all properties, 
being all the Lots in the Subdivision, benefiting therefrom, according to their Percentage Interests 
in the Common Property, in accordance with §§ 66.0627 Special Charges for Current Services and 
Certain Loan Repayments and/or 66.0628 Fees Imposed by a Political Subdivision, of the 
Wisconsin Statutes as applicable, and applicable provisions of the Franklin Municipal Code, or as 
a City special assessment under §§ 66.0701 Special Assessments by Local Ordinance, and 66.0703 
Special Assessments, Generally, of the Wisconsin Statutes as applicable, and applicable provisions 
of the Franklin Municipal Code, at the City's discretion.  The performance of any such work shall 
not be deemed an act of dedication to the public, nor shall it constitute an assumption by the City 
of any duty to perform any other or further work.  This paragraph may be amended only with the 
express consent of the City.  Nothing contained herein nor any act or omission of the City of 
Franklin hereunder, shall be construed to create any obligation or liability on the part of the City 
of Franklin, its agents or designees, whatsoever. 
 

Inspection Services Department comments 

6. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time. 
 

Police Department comments 

7. The PD has no comment regarding this request. 
 
 

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

12000 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 901 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-8 

R-3 

M-1 R-2 

C-1 R-8 
C-1 

LOOMIS
RD

RYAN                           RD   

LOOMIS CT

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 420 840210 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

12000 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 901 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

LOOMIS
RD

RYAN                           RD   

MONARCH DR

LOOMIS CT

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 420 840210 Feet

Property

 






























































































































	01 2022-0818 Plan Commission Agenda
	FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

	02 2022-0804 PC Minutes - Draft
	03 Item C.1._JAX Inc._Special Use
	01 PC Report 08-18-22 - Jax SU - Special Use
	INTRODUCTION

	02 JAX Inc. SU 8-11-22 with conditions
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	21 PC submittal 08-04-22
	22 Franklin Site Zoomed - Additional Drawing

	04 Item D.1._Joint Venture LLC_Site Plan Amend
	01 2022-08-18- PC Report Joint Venture LLC_SP_6350 S 35th St
	INTRODUCTION
	PROJECT ANALYSIS:
	UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	City Development Staff recommends approval of this Site Plan subject to the conditions in the draft resolution.

	02 Joint Venture L.L.C. garage SP A 8-9-22 (REVISED 08-10-2022)
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 Applicant PC Submittal Binder1
	Franklin Township Permit Cover Letter - Zach
	Shed Plans and Contract
	Annotation 2022-08-08 121815
	Survey - Parkwood - Shed


	05 Item D.2._Woodfield Trail_Condominium Plat
	01 PC Report 08-17-22 - Woodfield Trail - Condo Plat
	02 Woodfield Trail condominium complex Condo Plat 8-11-22 - with conditions
	03 2022-08-02 - Staff Comments - Condominium Plat - Woodfield Trail
	City Development Department comments

	04 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	41 PC submittal_combined
	01 Condominium Plat 08-04-22
	02 Declaration
	03 Bylaws
	41 Conservation exhibit
	42 Landscape bufferyard exhibit
	43 Dedication exhibit 1
	43 Dedication exhibit 2
	44 Stormwater pond and access exhibit 
	45 Water main exhibit





